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STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
CONNECTICUT SITING COUNCIL  

Ten Franklin Square, New Britain, CT  06051 

Phone: (860) 827-2935  Fax: (860) 827-2950 

E-Mail: siting.council@ct.gov 

Web Site: portal.ct.gov/csc 

 

 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
November 5, 2020 

 
TO:  Service List dated August 7, 2020 

 

FROM:  Melanie Bachman, Executive Director 

 

RE: DOCKET NO. 492 – Gravel Pit Solar application for a Certificate of 

Environmental Compatibility and Public Need for the construction, maintenance, 

and operation of a 120-megawatt-AC solar photovoltaic electric generating facility 

on eight parcels generally located to the east and west of the Amtrak and 

Connecticut Rail Line, south of Apothecaries Hall Road and north of the South 

Windsor town boundary in East Windsor, Connecticut and associated electrical 

interconnection. 

 

 

 

Comments have been received from the State of Connecticut Department of Agriculture, dated 

November 4, 2020.  A copy of the comments is attached for your review. 
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c: Council Members 
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November 4, 2020 
 
Melanie A. Bachman 
Executive Director 
Connecticut Siting Council 
10 Franklin Square 
New Britain, CT 06051 
 
Re: Docket No. 492 - Gravel Pit Solar application for a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility and Public Need 
for the construction, maintenance, and operation of a 120-megawatt-AC solar photovoltaic electric generating facility 
on eight parcels generally located to the east and west of the Amtrak and Connecticut Rail Line, south of Apothecaries 
Hall Road and north of the South Windsor town boundary in East Windsor, Connecticut and associated electrical 
interconnection. 
 
 
Dear Executive Director Bachman: 
 
Upon review of the above referenced docket, and the attached memo, the Connecticut Department of Agriculture is 
opposed to this project due to the significant amount of valuable prime farmland being consumed for non-agricultural 
purposes.   
 
Specifically, we have the following comments on this proposed project:   
 

1) The project will convert approximately 230 acres1 of prime farmland from its existing agricultural use of 
growing crops such as feed corn, shade tobacco and vegetables, to a use which compromises the future viability 
of that farmland by placing a large-scale utility solar project on the property; 
 

2) The farmland will be impacted by the use of heavy equipment, installation of driven metal support posts, 
extensive trenching for electrical conduit, surface grading, construction of access roads and equipment pads.  
These activities will have an adverse impact on the upper 24 inches of the soil which are critical to plant growth 
- inversion of soil horizons, compaction, destruction of soil structure, acidification, loss of fertility, and 
changes to surface and subsurface soil hydrology are likely, with negative consequences for agricultural 
productivity; and  
 

3) Mitigation of the prime farmland soils, which has been the case for much smaller (2-5 megawatt) projects, is 
not being proposed.  For example, consideration could have been given to co-use opportunities and/or other 
mitigation measures, including but not limited to, the following: 
 

a. Restoration of farmland on the site to allow for production agriculture during the life of the project; 
b. Restoration of farmland at another location within the same municipality to retain prime and important 

farmland soils within the Connecticut River Valley; 
c. A proposal to the purchase of conservation easements on other farmland in the community; 
d. Setting aside a percentage of the prime farmland for continued agricultural use; 

 
1 The information regarding the prime farmland acreage is derived from a memo titled “Connecticut Department of Agriculture Consultation Gravel Pit Solar 
Project East Windsor, CT,” dated July 22, 2020, copy attached. 



 
 

e. Incorporating the use of agrivoltaics to allow for the continued production agriculture throughout the 
life of the project (e.g., increasing spacing and height of the panels to allow for growing crops); 

f. Creation of pollinator habitat, maintaining beehives and honey production; and 
g. Incorporating the use of grazing on the site. 

 
When the project is decommissioned, the soil productivity will have been compromised and require restoration with 
unknown productivity levels for future farmers.  We note the comments made by the Council on Environmental Quality 
about decommissioning in their letter to the Siting Council dated October 1, 2020, and adopt their comments on this 
matter, along with their other concerns about the negative impact of this project on prime farmland.  
 
The loss of 230 acres of actively used prime farmland soils will likely put additional farms at risk for conversion to 
non-agricultural use, including development.  The Department takes its mission to preserve farmland for future 
generations as a critical one that greatly benefits the State and its residents.  Permitting such large-scale projects on 
prime farmland would set a poor example for demonstrating the State’s stewardship of it agricultural resources.  
 
With respect to siting of these projects, the agency encourages the use of alternative locations such as highway right 
of ways, brownfield sites, developed sites and gravel mines, placement of solar in parking lots and on parking lot sheds, 
and on large structures such as malls and warehouses. These locations are much better suited to solar development, 
and would be a better alternative than one that results in the permanent loss of finite prime farmland soil resources that 
provide significant ecosystem goods and services. 
 
The Department supports properly scaled renewable energy on farms and farmland where such projects are in concert 
with Connecticut’s farmland protection goals and policies, but this project does not align with those goals.  This project 
will materially adversely affect the status of such land as prime farmland, and therefore the Department opposes the 
issuance of a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility.  Approval of this project would be counter to the state’s 
goals of farmland protection and the promotion of agricultural economic development, both of which, are important 
components of sustainability and climate change adaptation and mitigation.   
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this project.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Bryan P. Hurlburt 
Commissioner 
 
Enc.  
 
Cc: Katie Dykes, Commissioner 
 Department of Energy and Environmental Protection w/ Enc. 
   
  



 
 

 



 
 

  



 
 

  



 
 

 
  



 
 

 
  



 
 

 
  



 
 

 
  



 
 

 
  



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

  



 
 

 

 


